
 

 

North Wales Corporate Joint Committee 
 

 

 

Meeting 
 

NORTH WALES CORPORATE JOINT COMMITTEE 
 
 

 

 
Date and Time 

 
1.30 pm, FRIDAY, 22ND NOVEMBER, 2024 

 

 
 

 
Location 

 
Virtual Meeting 

 
For public access to the meeting, please contact us 

 
 

 

 

Contact Point 

Sioned Mai Jones 

01286 679665 

sionedmaijones@gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

(DISTRIBUTED 15/11/24) 

Complete Agenda



 

 

NORTH WALES CORPORATE JOINT COMMITTEE 
 
 

Council Members 
 

Cllr. Jason McLellan - Denbighshire County Council 
Cllr. Gary Pritchard - Isle of Anglesey County Council 

Cllr. Charlie McCoubury - Conwy County Borough Council 
Cllr. Mark Pritchard - Wrexham County Borough Council 

Cllr. Dave Hughes - Flintshire County Council 
Empty Seat - Cyngor Gwynedd 

 
 

Snowdonia Member 
 

Cllr. Edgar Wyn Owen – Snowdonia National Park Authority 

 
 

Chief Officers 
 

Dafydd Gibbard - Cyngor Gwynedd  
Dylan Williams - Isle of Anglesey County Council 

Rhun ap Gareth - Conwy County Borough Council 
Neal Cockerton - Flintshire County Council 

Graham Boase - Denbighshire County Council 
Ian Bancroft - Wrexham County Borough Council 

Emyr Williams – Snowdonia National Park Authority 
 
 

Statutory Officers 
 

Alwen Williams – Interim Corporate Joint Committee Chief Executive 
Dewi Aeron Morgan – Chief Finance Officer 

Iwan G Evans – Monitoring Officer  



 

 

 

A G E N D A 
 

1.   APOLOGIES 
 

 

 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 
 

2.   DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST 
 

 

 To receive any declaration of Personal Interest. 

 
 

3.   URGENT BUSINESS 
 

 

 To note any items that are a matter of urgency in the view of the Chair for 
consideration. 

 

 

4.   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 

4 - 7 

 The Chair shall propose that the minutes of the previous meeting held on 
the 11th of October, 2024 be signed as a true record. 

 

 

5.   UPDATE: TRANSFER OF THE NORTH WALES ECONOMIC 
AMBITION BOARD FUNCTIONS TO THE CORPORATE JOINT 
COMMITTEE 
 

8 - 12 

 Alwen Williams (Portfolio Director and CJC Interim Chief Executive) and 
Geraint Owen (Corporate Director, Cyngor Gwynedd) to present the report.  

 

 

6.   FLINTSHIRE AND WREXHAM INVESTMENT ZONE - PROGRESS 
UPDATE 
 

13 - 26 

 Alwen Williams (Interim CJC Chief Executive) to present the report.  

 
 

 
 



NORTH WALES CORPORATE JOINT COMMITTEE 11/10/24 

 

1 

 

 

 
NORTH WALES CORPORATE JOINT COMMITTEE 

11/10/24 
 

 
Present:  Chair: Councillor Mark Pritchard (Wrexham County Borough Council).   
 
Councillors: Robin Williams (Anglesey County Council), Dave Hughes (Flintshire County 
Council), Charlie McCoubrey (Conwy County Borough Council), Barry Mellor (Denbighshire 
County Council) and Edgar Owen (Eryri National Park Authority).   
 
Chief Officers: Dafydd Gibbard (Cyngor Gwynedd), Dylan Williams (Anglesey County Council), 
Rhun ap Gareth (Conwy County Borough Council), Neal Cockerton (Flintshire County Council), 
Ian Bancroft (Wrexham County Borough Council) and Graham Boase (Denbighshire County 
Council).  
 
Statutory Officers 
Dewi Morgan (Chief Finance Officer) and Claire Incledon (Solicitor and deputising for the 
Monitoring Officer). 
 
Other officers present 
Alwen Williams (Interim Chief Executive of the CJC), David Hole (Corporate Joint Committee 
Implementation Programme Manager), Sian Pugh (Assistant Head of Finance), Jack Latkovic 
(Corporate Joint Committee Democracy Officer) and Sioned Mai Jones (Democracy Team 
Leader).  
 
 
1. APOLOGIES 
 

Apologies were received from:  

• Councillor Dyfrig Siencyn (Cyngor Gwynedd)   

• Councillor Gary Pritchard (Anglesey County Council) with Councillor Robin Williams 
deputising 

• Iwan Evans (Monitoring Officer)  

• Iwan Jones (Eryri National Park Authority) 
 
2. DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST 

 
None to note.  
 

3. URGENT ITEMS 
 
None to note. 

 
4. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

 
The Chair signed the minutes of the previous meeting, held on 6 September 2024, as a true 
record.  

 
5. CJC ESTABLISHMENT PROGRESS UPDATE  

 
The report was submitted by Alwen Williams, Interim Chief Executive of the CJC. 
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 4



NORTH WALES CORPORATE JOINT COMMITTEE 11/10/24 

 

2 

 

RESOLVED: 
1. To accept the update, the progress made to prepare for the proposed 

transfer of the Growth Deal, its funding and the PMO into the CJC, but 
recognising the challenge and reasons outlined for the delay, which will 
impact the current plans to transfer on 1 November 2024. 

2. To direct that a further report be submitted on setting out a revised transfer 
date and supported by a comprehensive risk assessment and detailed plan.  

 
DISCUSSION 
 
A summary of the report was provided which updated CJC members on the progress that 
had been made to establish the Corporate Joint Committee, which included the transfer of 
the Growth Deal, its funding and the Portfolio Management Office. 
 
The CJC was reminded of the background and the original decision which was a decision 
in principle as legislation relating to the CJC continued to develop. It was noted that the 
work related to the programme plan to identify and mitigate potential risks that may affect 
the transfer on the 1 November continued. The key legal issues being developed as set out 
in part 5.2 of the report were mentioned before referring to the challenges that could cause 
delays. 
 
It was acknowledged that significant progress had been made on most aspects of the 
project but that the process would take longer than expected and that contingency planning 
was underway to establish whether certain elements of the transfer could be achieved this 
year and which would transfer in 2025. It was reiterated that it was a complex change 
involving the transfer of people to a new corporate body and therefore there was a 
responsibility to ensure that that body was ready to receive the people and for the working 
arrangements to be adequate.  
 
The Chair thanked the Interim Chief Executive of the CJC for the comprehensive progress 
report and thanked her for her patience in the effort to transfer the Growth Deal. It was 
reported that the Welsh Government was also working incredibly hard to meet the targets. 
It was hoped to be able to meet the target in terms of the date aimed for, but it was 
recognised that this could be challenging which was why a revised contingency transfer 
date was required. 
 
It was noted that the report was clear and detailed the different concerns and various 
complexities involved in the process of establishing the Corporate Joint Committee.  

 
6. STRATEGIC TRANSPORT SUB-COMMITTEE – CO-OPTED MEMBERSHIP  

 
The report was submitted by Claire Incledon (Solicitor and deputising for the Monitoring 
Officer). 
 
RESOLVED to approve the appointment of the following co-opted members (without 
a vote) to the CJC's Strategic Transport Sub-committee: 

• Representative of Eryri National Park  
• Representative of Transport for Wales 

 
DISCUSSION 

  
The report was submitted stating that the first meeting of the CJC's Strategic Transport 

Sub-committee was held on 1 ⁠October. It was noted that this report required approval to 
appoint two co-opted members to the Sub-committee, namely the Eryri National Park 
Representative and the Transport for Wales Representative. 

Page 5



NORTH WALES CORPORATE JOINT COMMITTEE 11/10/24 

 

3 

 

 
One error was highlighted in the report which recommended that the appointments would 
be effective for an initial period until 31 March 2025; it was noted that the correct period 
was until 31 March 2026. 

 
There were no further questions or observations.  

 
7. REGIONAL TRANSPORT PLAN – INTEGRATED WELL-BEING APPRAISAL SCOPING 

REPORT 
 
The report was submitted by Alwen Williams, Interim Chief Executive of the CJC. 
 
RESOLVED to accept and approve the IWBA Scoping Report, including the technical 
appendices (available on request), which must be prepared in support of the RTP, as 
recommended by the Strategic Transport Sub-committee. 

 
DISCUSSION 
 
The report was submitted which presented the work to develop an Integrated Well-being 
Appraisal Scoping Report (IWBA) required so that the Regional Transport Plan enabled the 
CJC to fulfil its statutory duties. 
 
It was noted that the Corporate Joint Committee was required to produce a Regional 
Transport Plan and a Regional Transport Delivery Plan by 31 March 2025. It was reported 
that the IWBA was a crucial step in the road map plan and that the Strategic Transport Sub-
committee in its meeting on 1 October had adopted the IWBA Scoping report and 
recommended that the CJC approve the steps to take the work forward to the scoping 
consultation phase. 
 
The background and relevant considerations were provided as set out in part 4 of the report. 
It was highlighted that technical appendices were available on request, it was noted that 
they were not included with the report.  
 
The Interim Chief Executive of the CJC was thanked for the report. 
 

8. FLINTSHIRE AND WREXHAM INVESTMENT ZONE  
 
The report was submitted by Alwen Williams, Interim Chief Executive of the CJC. 

 
RESOLVED to accept the report. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The report was a joint one between the Chief Executive of Wrexham County Borough 
Council, the Chief Executive of Flintshire County Council and the Interim Chief Executive of 
the CJC. It was reported that the purpose of the report was to provide the latest information 
on the progress of the new Investment Zone in Flintshire and Wrexham which focused on 
Advanced Manufacturing. It was highlighted that the Investment Zone focused on 
investments in Flintshire and Wrexham but was expected to have wider beneficial impacts 
across the north. 
 
It was reported that good progress was being made on the development of Porth 2 and that 
the draft Porth 2 document had been prepared for formal review by the Government. It was 
noted that Porth 3 would follow at the end of November once Porth 2 had been approved.  
 

Page 6



NORTH WALES CORPORATE JOINT COMMITTEE 11/10/24 

 

4 

 

It was noted that the report provided an overview of proposed Tax Sites and clarified that 
the Investment Zone could have three Tax Sites, up to 200ha each. Reference was made 
to part 5 of the report detailing the Tax Sites and their benefits, noting that there was 
potential to support more than 6,400 new jobs. It was noted that a further report with more 
details and a summary of the opportunity would follow once further work had been 
undertaken. 
 
The delivery structure and resources of the Investment Zone Team were mentioned, and 
reference made to the example of the proposed team structure set out in part 9.4 of the 
report. 
 
The Interim Chief Executive of the CJC was thanked for the update and presentation, noting 
that the report was comprehensive. Thanks were also expressed to the two Local 
Authorities working together, noting that this was an important element and gratitude was 
expressed to the authors of the report.  
 
It was stated that the work seemed to be moving forward quickly and pride was expressed 
in what had been achieved to date. It was believed that there was good interaction with the 
Welsh Government and the UK Government to drive the plan forward, this was identified 
as being both positive and necessary.  
 
It was a pleasure to see that the Warren Hall site was included in the report and there was 
delight that something was now being done here. The development was declared an 
exciting piece of work; it was noted that the aspect of job creation and the aspects of 
economic growth were huge and something to be proud of. 

 
 

 
 
 
 

The meeting began at 13:30 and ended at 14:00. 
 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
(Chair) 

Page 7



 

 

NORTH WALES CORPORATE JOINT COMMITTEE 

22 NOVEMBER, 2024  

 
TITLE: Update: Transfer of the North Wales Economic Ambition Board functions to the 

Corporate Joint Committee  

AUTHOR: Alwen Williams, Portfolio Director and CJC Interim Chief Executive 

Geraint Owen, Corporate Director, Cyngor Gwynedd 

  
 
1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1. The purpose of the report is to present a further update on progress to establish the Corporate 

Joint Committee (CJC), with particular focus on undertaking the proposed transfer of the North 
Wales Economic Ambition Board’s functions into the CJC. 

 
1.2. To seek approval from the CJC to extend the arrangement for the Portfolio Director to 

undertake the role of Interim Chief Executive for two days per week until 31st of March, 2025 
or the transfer date, depending on which comes first. All employment and associated costs for 
this arrangement will continue to be met by the North Wales CJC.  

 
2. DECISION SOUGHT 
 
2.1. To accept the progress update on work to establish the North Wales CJC, including the transfer 

of the Growth Deal and progress on tasks required to achieve the CJCs statutory functions. 
 
2.2. To authorise the Portfolio Director to agree a revised transfer programme and date with the 

Local Authorities and Higher and Further Education partners within the overall target date of 
1st April, 2025. 

 
2.3. To approve the extension of the interim arrangement for the Economic Ambition Board’s 

Portfolio Director to undertake the role of the Corporate Joint Committee’s Chief Executive on 
a temporary basis for two days a week until the 31 March, 2025 or the transfer date, depending 
on which comes first. 

 
3. REASON FOR THE DECISION 
 
3.1. In December 2021/January 2022, the Cabinet and Executives in each of the six Local Authorities 

and wider Economic Ambition Board partnership agreed, in principle, that the functions of the 
North Wales Economic Ambition Board should be transferred by way of a delegation 
agreement to the CJC. The statutory framework and the establishment of the CJC requires the 
focus and resources required to progress the transfer work. Approvals from all partner 
organisations and Governments are required before the transfer can complete.  

 
  

Page 8

Agenda Item 5



 

3.2. The functions and partnership arrangement of the Economic Ambition Board are currently set 
out in GA2. This also includes the governance arrangement and long-term arrangements for 
financially supporting the Growth Deal and Portfolio Management Office to deliver the deal. 
Under the proposed delegation agreement, the Growth Deal and associated financial 
arrangements would transfer to the CJC and would respond in part to the power given to the 
CJC to promote regional economic well-being. This Economic Well-being function co-exists with 
the economic development powers of each of the North Wales Councils. How, as part of the 
CJC establishment, these functions work regionally will need to be co-developed and agreed by 
regional partners. It also needs to be recognised that the original in-principle decisions to 
transfer the Growth Deal were made when the CJC concept was still being developed. So, the 
precise model for the transfer arrangements will be agreed with partners as part of the next 
steps. 

 
3.3. To affect the transfer, there are key legal matters which are being progressed: 
 

i. Agreement with the Governments on the transfer (novation) of the Growth Deal across to 
the CJC and the model for achieving this. The principle of the transfer has government 
support. 

ii. Formal decisions by the parties to Governance Agreement 2 (GA2) and the CJC to agree to 
the transfer of the Growth Deal functions and its Accountable Body function to the CJC. 

iii. Creation of Joint Working and Funding Agreement between the parties to GA2 and the 
Corporate Joint Committee. The agreement will be a successor to GA2 and in many 
respects will reflect the current arrangements. However, the different corporate status of 
the CJC will mean that aspects of the agreement will need to be approached differently. 
These reflect the fact that GA2 created a Joint Committee of the Constituent Councils with 
delegated powers, whereas the CJC (notwithstanding its name) is a statutory corporation. 
The aim however is to reflect and seek to replicate the partnership arrangements within 
the transfer model and provide a contractual framework to ensure delivery of the Growth 
Deal and continue with the financial commitments of the partners to the project. 

 
3.4. The 1st of November was set as a provisional target date for the transfer of functions from the 

Economic Ambition Board into the North Wales Corporate Joint Committee. This date was 
dependent on receiving the required approvals for transfer and several key actions and 
decisions remain outstanding. These include: 

 

• agreement on the governance model for decision making. 

• circulation and agreement of the draft GA3 (successor to GA2) to codify arrangements. 

• reaching a novation agreement for the Growth Deal with Welsh Government. 

• completion of the GA3 partnership agreement. 

 
3.5. The transfer date of 1st November 2024 was therefore unachievable. 
 
4. BACKGROUND AND RELEVANT CONSIDERATIONS 
 
4.1. Establishment of the CJC is a legal requirement and timetables to discharge the statutory duties 

prescribed in the legislation – to produce a Regional Transport Plan and a regional Strategic 
Development Plan are pressing. 

 

Page 9



 

• Work to develop the Regional Transport Plan and associated Regional Transport Delivery 
Plan is progressing well and targeted to be presented to Government in summer 2025.  

• The Strategic Transport Sub-Committee has been established and held their inaugural 
meeting on 1st October, 2024. Work to develop the Strategic Development Plan is not so 
advanced due to capacity constraints. The first step is to produce a Delivery Agreement 
and resource is currently being identified to support this.  

• Progress on transfer of the Growth Deal into the CJC was reported to the CJC at their 
meeting on 6th September and 11th October – with key risks on timescales highlighted 
during the latter. The CJC requested a comprehensive plan and timeline to be presented 
for their consideration at their meeting on 22nd November (see 4.6).  

 
4.2. The CJC is also subject to the more general duties of local authorities, such as the Equalities 

Act, Future Generations Act, language standards under the Welsh Language Measure 2011, 
and other legislation, in the same way as local authorities. Whilst this is necessary for a new 
Local Government entity, it significantly adds to the CJC establishment workload. 

 
4.3. It was noted in March that substantial work is still needed to complete the establishment of 

the CJC. Close attention and diligence while undertaking the transfer is required to ensure that 
delivery of the North Wales Growth Deal, the work of the Economic Ambition Board and its 
supporting officers are unaffected by the transfer.  

 
4.4. In June 2024, the Economic Ambition Board and the CJC approved the arrangement to release 

the Portfolio Director, Alwen Williams, to undertake the CJCs Interim Chief Executive role for 
two days per week until 31st October, 2024. This extended arrangement was on the basis that 
a formal TUPE consultation with the Ambition North Wales Portfolio Management Office 
employees would be completed and the transfer and appointment of Alwen Williams as the 
CJC Chief Executive would commence from 1st November, 2024. 

 
4.5. Progress to date has been achieved by means of the interim part-time Chief Executive, with the 

Chief Financial Officer and Monitoring Officer of Cyngor Gwynedd appointed to undertake their 
respective statutory roles on behalf of the CJC. Legal and financial services as well as wider 
support functions such as HR, IT and Democratic Services are also being provided by Cyngor 
Gwynedd. It is intended for these arrangements to continue to support the transfer process. 

 
Revised timetable for the transfer of the Growth Deal 

 
4.6. Revised transfer options are being considered and will aim to achieve the required approvals 

to transfer the Growth Deal, its funding and the Portfolio Management Office into the CJC by 
the 1st April, 2025 at the latest. As a result, an extension to the interim Chief Executive role is 
also sought. The Economic Ambition Board’s preparedness to release the Portfolio Director on 
this basis was confirmed at its meeting on the 8 November, 2024. All employment and other 
associated costs will continue to be covered by the North Wales CJC during this period. 

 
4.7. To transfer the functions of the Economic Ambition Board, including the Growth Deal and the 

Portfolio Management Office into the CJC, several focused and interconnected workstreams 
have been established and each has contributed and committed to a programme of work to 
achieve the transfer of Economic Ambition Board functions to the CJC.  A CJC Implementation 
Project Board meets weekly to oversee the workstreams and ensure key milestones are 
achieved with key risks identified and managed. Officers from the Portfolio Management Office 
and Cyngor Gwynedd are represented on the project board. 

 

Page 10



 

4.8. CJC implementation programme management resource has been in place since January 2024. 
Initially this was provided by means of a secondee from Welsh Government – an arrangement 
that concluded in May 2024. In July 2024, contractor David Hole joined the PMO team to 
provide the Programme Management capacity. This support is essential to support the Interim 
Chief Executive meet operational and statutory expectations and work alongside the CJCs 
Section 151 Officer and Monitoring Officer and the wider Legal, Finance, HR and IT and 
Democratic Services colleagues from Cyngor Gwynedd who are members of the CJCs project 
board. 

 
5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1. Costs associated with the transfer of functions to the CJC will be primarily related to officer 

time, legal and financial expenditure. Funding will be drawn from existing CJC and Economic 
Ambition Board budgets.  Legal, HR, Finance, IT and Democratic Services support will be 
provided through Cyngor Gwynedd resources. 

 
6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1. The report sets out at a high level what is proposed. 
 
6.2. The Growth Deal is a formal partnership between the UK and Welsh Governments and the 6 

constituent authorities. It is portfolio based and funding is drawn down by a formal annual 
funding letter which is a grant agreement made by the host authority on behalf of the ten GA2 
partners. The release of funding for any period is subject to the performance of the 
implementation of the Growth Deal and may be held back by the Governments. The transfer 
of the Growth Deal functions to the CJC is a matter reserved to the Local Authorities and will 
require agreement between all the parties to GA2. A revised transfer date will be established 
in agreement with these partners, but the Board will receive reports and be consulted on the 
key decisions.  

 
6.3. There are several governance and legal matters that need to be managed as part of the 

transition. These are highlighted in paragraph 3.3 and 3.4. 
 
 

 
APPENDICES: 
 

None  

 
 

 
STATUTORY OFFICERS RESPONSE: 
 

i. Monitoring Officer: 
 
"I have contributed to this programme and can confirm the matters which are set out 
in the report and the summary of the Legal Matters. Although completing this transfer 
as soon as possible is a priority it is equally important that the process is completed 
effectively as to ensure a seamless process which enables continued efficient delivery 
of the Growth Deal with the partners.” 
 

Page 11



 

ii. Statutory Finance Officer: 
 

“Officers from the Finance Service continue to provide support to facilitate the further 
development of the CJC.  The budgets and expenditure of both the CJC and the Growth 
Deal are the subject of regular review, and I am confident that the financial 
arrangements are robust, whatever the new date that is determined for the transfer 
of the Growth Deal into the CJC.” 
 

Page 12



 

 

NORTH WALES CORPORATE JOINT COMMITTEE 

22 November, 2024  

 
TITLE: Flintshire and Wrexham Investment Zone – Progress Update 

AUTHOR: Alwen Williams, Interim Chief Executive 

  
 
1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1. The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the progress to secure a new Investment 

Zone designation in Flintshire and Wrexham focused on Advanced Manufacturing.  The report 
presents information prepared for consideration by the Cabinet of Flintshire and Wrexham 
Councils. Additional information is included to support and enhance the CJCs understanding, 
including recent developments in the Investment Zone programme and informal feedback from 
Government colleagues on the Gateway 2 (Sector and Geography) submission.  

 
1.2. Some of the information has been previously provided to the CJC but is included here for 

completeness. 
 
2. DECISION SOUGHT 
 
2.1. Members review and approve the identified Tax Sites (Deeside Gateway, Warren Hall and 

Wrexham Industrial Estate) and Retained Rates Areas (Deeside Gateway and Wrexham 
Industrial Estate). 

 
2.2. Members review and approve the proposed overarching Governance Model. 
 
2.3. That Members review and approve the Investment Zone Themes (Innovation, Skills, and 

Transport) and the high-level interventions, which will be refined as part of Gateway 4 
(Interventions) and consider inclusion of ‘Business Support’ as a fourth theme. This theme  
captures the intention to directly invest in advanced manufacturing businesses with advice and 
grant funding. 

 
3. REASON FOR THE DECISION 
 
3.1. To support the preparation of Gateway 3 (Governance)  and prepare the thematic focus for the 

Gateway 4 (Interventions). 
 
4. GENERAL PROGRESS UPDATE 
 
4.1. Progress continues to be made in close collaboration with Flintshire and Wrexham Councils, 

local stakeholders and Welsh and UK Governments.  The development of Gateway 2: Sector 
and Geography has focused on the key themes of business support, skills, innovation and 
transport and the developments unlocked on the proposed Tax Sites. 

 
  

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



4.2. Government has provided Informal feedback on Gateway 2 on the 8th November which will be 
taken on board within a Formal Gateway 2 submission on the 20th of November.  Allowing for 
cross Government (both Welsh and UK) the target is for a formal review meeting c16th 
December.  If the IZ is approved to continue, an announcement of the Investment Zone can be 
made with the support of both Governments. 

 
5. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
5.1. Flintshire County Council and Wrexham County Borough Council are working with the North 

Wales Corporate Joint Committee (CJC), Welsh Government and UK Government on an 
advanced manufacturing Investment Zone - the Flintshire and Wrexham Investment Zone (the 
Investment Zone). The aim is to create over 6,000 new jobs across the manufacturing sector 
and attract approximately £1bn of investment, as evidenced by an open call process.  The 
match funding is driven by the investment of private sector delivery partners across the three 
tax sites and some of the major investment projects delivered by private sector partners. 

 
5.2. The Investment Zone will provide £160m of Flexible Funding and a programme of occupier and 

developer focused tax benefits to accelerate the development of the Investment Zone Tax 
Sites.   

 
5.3. The three tax sites are: 
 

• Deeside Gateway - development sites across four ownerships delivering a range of 
commercial premises; 

• Warren Hall - the strategic location owned by Welsh Government; 

• Wrexham Industrial Estate - the key large development sites at Wrexham Industrial Estate. 

 
5.4. In addition to the Flexible Funding and Tax Site benefits, Flintshire and Wrexham Councils can 

retain a proportion of the new business rates generated by the Deeside Gateway and Wrexham 
Industrial Estate Tax Sites.  These collected business rates can be invested by the Councils to 
further the objectives of the Investment Zone and can fund revenue and capital projects.  The 
retained rates are protected for 25 years and may be used to fund capital projects by borrowing 
against future collected rates income.  The arrangements for how these Retained Rates Funds 
will be set up by the Councils will be determined in the early part of 2025. 

 
5.5. The Investment Zone proposal is progressing through the five Government 'Gateways'.  

Gateway 1, the Vision, has been approved by UK and Welsh Governments.  Gateway 2, the 
Sector and Geography, has been prepared in draft form and will be submitted formally on the 
20th November, 2024 following the confirmation in the October 2024 Budget that the 
Investment Zone programme will continue UK wide.  The Gateway documents will be prepared 
in sequence with the aim of having all approvals in place to commence in April 2025. 

 
6. EXPLAINING THE FLINTSHIRE AND WREXHAM INVESTMENT ZONE 
 
6.1. Flintshire County Council and Wrexham County Borough Council are working with the CJC, 

Welsh Government and UK Government on an advanced manufacturing Investment Zone.  The 
aim is to create over 6,000 new jobs across the manufacturing sector and attract an estimated 
£1bn of investment. 

 
6.2. The Investment Zone, if agreed by Government, will attract £160m of investment for 10 years 

from April 2025 for investment in projects that create jobs and attract private sector 
investment to grow the manufacturing cluster across Flintshire and Wrexham. 

Page 14



 
6.3. In addition to the eight Investment Zones in England and two in Scotland, there are two 

proposed Investment Zones in Wales: 
 

• Cardiff and Newport - delivered by the South-East Wales Corporate Joint Committee 

• Flintshire and Wrexham - delivered by the North Wales Corporate Joint Committee 
 
6.4. Alongside the £160m grant, three tax sites can be designated to allow a series of tax reliefs to 

support site development, attract investment and accelerate business and job growth.  These 
benefits are: 

 

• 5-year relief from business rates for new business growth; 

• Stamp Duty Land Tax (SDLT): A full SDLT relief for land and buildings bought for commercial 
use or development for commercial purposes; 

• Employer National Insurance Contributions Relief: Zero-rate employer national insurance 
contributions on salaries of any new employee working in the tax site for at least 60% of 
their time, on earnings up to £25,000 per year (for 36 months per employee); 

• Enhanced Capital Allowance: 100% first year allowance for companies’ qualifying 
expenditure on plant and machinery assets for use in tax sites; 

• Enhanced Structures and Buildings Allowance: Accelerated relief to allow businesses to 
reduce their taxable profits by 10% of the cost of qualifying non-residential investment per 
year, relieving 100% of their cost of structures and buildings over 10 years. 

 
6.5. Investment Zones allow for two areas where half the new business rate growth can be retained 

by the Councils to invest in the delivery and management of the Investment Zone and to fund 
projects either from the balance accumulated or by borrowing against future business rates 
income.  This arrangement is protected for 25 years. 

 
7. THE FLINTSHIRE AND WREXHAM INVESTMENT ZONE GATEWAY PROCESS 
 
7.1. Progress by the CJC and Flintshire and Wrexham is supported and enabled by earlier decisions 

to develop the proposition.  The process for developing Investment Zones is collaborative in 
nature and relies on the sharing of documentation for review across local stakeholders, Welsh 
Government and UK Government Ministry of Health, Communities, and Local Government 
(MHCLG).  The intention is to share draft Gateway documents as they are prepared for 
feedback and agreement.  Gateway 1 has been agreed by Welsh and UK Governments and 
Gateway 2 has been drafted and will be submitted on the 20th  of November, 2024.  Progress 
on the remaining Gateways will continue over November - January 2025 to allow the 
programme to commence in April 2025. 

 
7.2. Gateway 1: Vision – has been agreed by Government and sets out the area's vision and 

ambition to grow the manufacturing sector and increase the productivity, innovation, 
investment, and number of quality manufacturing jobs. 

 
7.3. Gateway 2: Sector and Geography - sets out the economic context; an understanding of the 

manufacturing sector such that we can demonstrate our understanding of the key 
interventions Government investment could make to help accelerate investment, innovation, 
skills development, and jobs growth. This Gateway also requires the Investment Zone to 
confirm the locations of any Tax Sites and Retained Rates Investment Areas that represent the 
greatest opportunity to support growth of manufacturing premises. Finally, Gateway 2 also 

Page 15



considers planning and research.  Wrexham University is the Investment Zone’s Knowledge 
Partner with Bangor University and AMRC involved as a key innovation partners. 

 
7.4. To support our appraisal of the project interventions and tax sites available across Wrexham 

and Flintshire an open 'Call for Projects and Sites' was launched and run between 15-26 July, 
2024. Proposals were submitted by means of a standard proforma with over 45 project ideas 
and 21 proposed Tax Sites and Retained Rates Investment Areas received. 

 
7.5. Project proposals - the 45 project ideas totalled approximately £250m of investment required 

from the proposed Investment Zone funding and represented c.£1bn of private match funding. 
Ongoing discussions with local partners indicate further opportunities not yet presented which 
will come forward over the forthcoming weeks and months. This will further strengthen the 
case for an Investment Zone focused on growth of a globally significant advanced 
manufacturing sector. Data received through the open call for projects indicates that the 
Investment Zone could create approximately 6,000 new jobs and therefore increase 
manufacturing employment by an estimated 20% over the ten years Investment Zone term. 

 
7.6. Tax Sites and Retained Rates Investment Areas - a total of 21 sites were promoted and seven 

were shortlisted (four in Flintshire and three in Wrexham). The shortlisted sites all conform 
with local planning policy. Meetings were held with development proposers on the 4th and 5th 
of September to help determine the locations to be proposed as Tax Sites. The two sites with 
the largest opportunity for retained business rates will be designated for business rates 
retention. Flintshire and Wrexham Councils will be able to re-invest fifty percent of income 
from business rate growth received from these designation areas for the 25-year term of the 
Investment Zone. This income can be directed at supporting economic growth across the 
Investment Zone and to support borrowing for investment in key projects. 

 
7.7. Gateway 3: Governance – sets out the governance, assurance, and financial aspects of the 

Investment Zone. These are to be managed by the CJC via the Economic Wellbeing Sub-
Committee.  A new Investment Zone partnership board will be established in 'Shadow' form to 
support the establishment of the programme and will become operational once the Investment 
Zone Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) is signed with Government.  The private sector 
partners that supported the development of Gateway 1 are being kept informed of progress. 

 
7.8. Gateway 3 will set out the mechanism for which projects are determined as eligible within the 

Investment Zone programme.  The approach will establish a joint Council basis for the further 
development of projects to be supported or evaluated by the CJC Assurance Process prior to 
final decision by the CJC. 

 
7.9. Figure 1 below sets out the current Governance model.  This has been updated since the 11th 

October, 2024 CJC report and includes a mechanism for Flintshire and Wrexham (named in the 
chart as a 'Working Group') to establish the forward investment plan or projects to be 
considered by the Investment Zone programme. 

 

Page 16



 
Figure 1 Proposed Governance Structure 

 
7.10 Gateway 4: Interventions – will provide details regarding the financial allocations to the 

interventions (projects) and the expected outputs of the Investment Zone programme. 
 
7.11. Gateway 5: Delivery Plan - will summarise the delivery arrangements for the Investment Zone. 
 
8. KEY COMPONENTS OF THE FLINTSHIRE AND WREXHAM INVESTMENT ZONE 
 
8.1. As well as direct investments in manufacturing and infrastructure, the Investment Zone will 

cluster investment across three core themes. These are: 
 

i. Skills - a jointly curated programme of skills support, led by the Regional Skills 
Partnership and delivered by higher education, further education and independent 
skills providers to address a general under qualification in the workforce relative to 
other areas and to allow local people to access the new jobs created across the role 
and skills profile (from low skilled to high skilled roles). 

 
ii. Innovation - in partnership with the Advanced Manufacturing Research Centre (AMRC) 

and Welsh Government Innovation Leads, the Investment Zone will jointly develop a 
programme of innovation revenue and capital investment in 'innovation infrastructure' 
as well as deliver investments in innovation by businesses. 

 
iii. Transport - in partnership with Transport for Wales, a transformation programme of 

transport projects will be delivered to enhance access to the key sites and support bus 
services, active travel, and strategic transport improvements. 

 
8.2. In addition to the above, the proposal is to develop a fourth theme 'Business Support' to 

provide the thematic basis for advice and grant support to co-invest in advanced manufacturing 
businesses in Flintshire and Wrexham. 

 
8.3. The Investment Zone can have three Tax Sites up to 200 hectares each.  The proposed Tax Sites 

are illustrated in Table 1 below.  The UK Government Technical Guidance suggests the cost of 
tax site benefits to be £75,000 per Hectare.  Based on this assumption, the cost of the benefits, 
funded from the £160m allocation is c£10.7m.  The actual allocation will need to be agreed 
with HMT and WG and could increase given the scale and density of development proposed. 

Page 17



 
8.4. The three tax sites cover 143ha, include 5,190,000sqft of development floorspace and have the 

potential to support over 6,400 new jobs.  Further jobs, approximately 1000, could be created 
by projects identified in the call for projects. 

 
Table 1 Proposed Tax Site Summary 

Tax Site Name Plot Name Landowners Hectares 

Deeside Gateway B, D and 3 Stealth Marshalls CDP 19 

Airfields Pochin Goodman 36 

Link 56 Smartstage Limited / Great 
Bear Distribution Limited 

12 

Warren Hall Eastern Parcels Welsh Government 12 

Flintshire Total   79 

 

Wrexham Industrial 
Estate 

Utopia Phase 1 NetworldSports 28 

 Wrexham 1M First Investments 24 

 Wrexham 152 First Investments 6 

 Bridgeway Centre First Investments 6 est 

Wrexham Total   64 

Overall Total   143 

 
8.5. The Tax Site Maps are included in this report at Appendix 1.  The Retained Rates areas are as 

per the Tax Site Map for Flintshire (Deeside Cluster) and the Wrexham Tax Site.  The Warren 
Hall Tax site is not part of the Retained Rates area. 

 
9. RETAINED RATES INVESTMENT SUMMARY 
 
9.1. The Investment Zone can have two areas designated for Retained Rates Investment.  To 

optimise the value of retained rates, the largest two Tax Sites have been proposed as Retained 
Rates Retention Areas.  Except for the ‘Wrexham 1M’ and ‘Wrexham 152’ development sites 
which are assumed to be fully developed, the model below is based on 50% of the development 
floorspace generating rates in the first 10 years (and therefore being retained for 15 years) and 
a contingency of 20%, the total rates fund is expected to be approximately £93.64m, half of 
which is available to the Councils for investment.  The breakdown is illustrated in Table 2 below. 
The illustrated Fund amount would need to factor in its own operating costs and interest costs 
in establishing a funding resource.  Funding allocations from the Fund will be determined by 
the host authority on a case-by-case basis. 

 
9.2. The total floorspace set out in the masterplans for the identified sites is 2,465,000 sq.ft. in 

Flintshire and 2,502,762 sq.ft. in Wrexham.  The Rateable Value is assumed to be £5/sq.ft. 
 
9.3. Further work will be undertaken to provide a more granular assessment of this aspect of the 

programme.  Figures intended to be illustrative of scale at this point. 
 

Table 2 Estimated Retained Rates Summary 

Retained Rates 
Location 

Estimated 
floorspace  
delivered in first 
10 years (sqft) 

Collected 
Rates Per 
Annum 

Total 
Collected 
over 15 
years 

Estimated 
Retained Rates 
Fund with 20% 
contingency 

Share for 
Investment by 
local Council 

Flintshire 1,232,500 £3,142,875 £47,143,125 £37,714,500 £18,857,250  

Wrexham 1,827,762 £4,660,793 £69,911,897 £55,929,517 £27,964,759  

Total    £93,644,017 £46,822,009  

 
Page 18



9.4. The above resources can fund Council functions associated with the Investment Zone as well 
as 'in year' projects and major projects funded by borrowing against future retained rates 
secured by confirmed Rateable Value from new development. Projects supported by this fund 
are expected to directly align to the objectives of the Investment Zone.  Projects that accelerate 
the delivery of new business rates in the Tax Sites are likely to be a priority.  The 'Call for 
Projects' process identified suitable infrastructure projects in Flintshire and Wrexham that 
would help unlock development plots and secure significant development within the first 10 
years of the Investment Zone. 

 
9.5. The Councils, who are responsible for the management of retained rates investment, will need 

to develop an accounting mechanism for these Retained Rates and develop criteria and 

governance for the deployment of the funds. This will be developed and approved by each 

Council as part of the establishment of the wider programme. 

 
10. INVESTMENT ALLOCATIONS 
 
10.1. Gateway 4 requires the Investment Zone to establish the allocation of the £160m flexible 

funding to interventions. 
 
10.2. The top-level Interventions are: 
 

• Skills 

• Local Infrastructure 

• Research and Innovation 

• Business Support 

• Planning 
 
10.3. Table 3 below sets out an indicative allocation.  These are to be refined following collaborative 

workshops on skills, innovation and transport as well as further discussions with partners on 
the available co-investment opportunities. 

 
Table 3 Indicative Top Level Intervention Allocations 

Budget Area Allocation  Proportion (% rounded) 

Programme Delivery £6,400,000 4% 

Feasibility and Business Case Support £2,500,000 2% 

Skills £21,100,000 13% 

Local Infrastructure (includes innovation and 
transport) 

£87,150,000 54% 

Research and Innovation £10,000,000 6% 

Business Support £10,000,000 6% 

Planning £1,000,000 1% 

Occupier Benefits £10,200,000 6% 

Currently Unallocated £11,650,000 7% 

Total £160,000,000 100% 

 
11. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1. The Investment Zone is jointly delivered by the North Wales CJC, Flintshire County Council and 

Wrexham County Borough Council.  Each partner is accountable for different aspects of the 
programme: 

 
i. Flintshire Council / Wrexham Council 

• Core member of Investment Zone Delivery Team 
Page 19



• Employment of local Delivery Team 

• Regeneration, business support, skills, planning, finance, legal, human resources, 
communications team resources 

• Support for an Investment Zone Combined Planning Unit 

• Management of Tax Site Benefits 

• Delivery of Gateway Policy process (see Glossary for definition) 

• Management and delivery of Retained Rates Fund 
 

ii. North Wales CJC 

• Employment of core team 

• Secretarial support to the Investment Zone Board 

• Management of Gateway Policy (see Glossary for definition) 

• Accountable Body for the £160m Grant Funding and Reporting – Ambition North 
Wales will apply its Assurance Process on agreed 'in principle' projects.  
Responsible for draw down of funding and delivery of IZ 

• Approval of Final Proposals, Outputs 
 
11.2. Revenue Funding 
 
11.2.1 The Investment Zone funding allows for £640,000 per annum for revenue costs.  The funding 

is available for 10 years.  The proposed split of this funding between the core partners is set 
out in the Table 4 below. 

 
Table 4 Indicative Resource Allocation 

Partner Programme 
Per Annum 

Programme 
Total Resource 

Planning 
Per Annum 

Planning Unit 
Resource Total 

Total Revenue 
Resource 

Flintshire £220,000 £2,200,000 £75,000 £375,000 £2,575,000 

Wrexham £220,000 £2,200,000 £75,000 £375,000 £2,575,000 

CJC £200,000 £2,000,000   £2,000,000 

NRW / 
Planning 
Unit 
Support  

  £50,000 £250,000 £250,000 

Total £640,000 £6,400,000 £125,000 £1,000,000 £7,400,000 

 
11.2.2 The CJC roles focus on programme accountability, reporting and investment project assurance.  

The Flintshire and Wrexham roles focus on working with local partners, developing projects 
and working to facilitate successful delivery through the assurance process and in delivery.  
Local Councils will support the work on transport, planning, skills and innovation. 

 
11.2.3 The £220,000 annual allocation is intended to support the roles employed by each local 

Council, bespoke for their current capability and requirements. 
 
11.2.4 The first claim will include costs incurred in 2024/25 and relate to officer time and a share of 

the consultancy costs incurred by AMION Consulting.  Consultancy costs are expected to be 
c£80,000 excluding VAT to end of March 2025.  Welsh Government, Flintshire and Wrexham 
Councils have each pledged £25,000 towards the costs of the Investment Zone proposal at risk 
which will be recovered by the Year 1 revenue claim.  The breakdown of this will be provided 
at the next stage. 

 
11.2.5 Further revenue funding will be available to the Councils from collected business rates.  The 

resources required to manage the fund will be deducted or 'top sliced' from the income 

Page 20



generated by retained rates and also contribute to revenue shortfalls from the flexible funding 
set out above. 

 
11.2.6 The Councils will also each receive £75,000 per annum for 5 years to secure senior planning 

resource as part of the proposal for an Investment Zone Planning Unit. 
 
11.2.7 The team structure proposed is set out in Figure 2 below. 
 

 
Figure 2 - Proposed Team Structure 

 
11.3. Capital Funding 
 
11.3.1 The Councils will be responsible for the investment of capital funds generated by the 

Investment Zone Retained Rates Fund.  The nature of this Retained Rates Fund and its 
operation will be considered and approved by the Councils in due course. Councils, subject to 
their own assurance arrangements, may deliver projects as well as offer grants to third parties. 

 
11.3.2 The Councils may access funding from the Investment Zone Flexible Fund administered by the 

North Wales CJC, for projects it delivers as part of the delivery programme.  Decisions regarding 

future projects, delivered by the Councils will be considered as part of the general assurance 

and decision-making functions of the Investment Zone. 

 
12. CONSULTATIONS 
 
12.1. Collaborative Approach 
 
12.1.1 The Investment Zone is collaborative in nature and the preparation of the Gateway responses 

includes key stakeholders, including: 
 

• Regeneration, planning, business support, finance and legal specialists from the Council 

• Wrexham University 

• Bangor University 

• Coleg Cambria 

• AMRC Cymru 

• Transport for Wales 

Page 21



• Welsh Government, including regional, development and innovation 

• North Wales CJC, including cluster specialists 

• Regional Skills Partnership 

• Many local businesses including large businesses and SMEs 
 
12.2. Call for Sites 
 
12.2.1 As set out above, the Investment Zone promoted a 'Call for Sites' to help identify the key 

development sites across Flintshire and Wrexham. 
 
12.3. Call for Projects 
 
12.3.1 As set out above, the Investment Zone promoted a 'Call for Projects' to help identify the key 

investment projects across Flintshire and Wrexham. 
 
13. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
13.1. As per previous Investment Zone papers to the CJC, the expectation is for the CJC to enter into 

an MoU with UK and Welsh Governments.  The CJC will also employ staff or enter into service 
contracts with local authority partners and consultants to support the delivery of the 
Investment Zone.  In delivering the programme, the CJC will oversee the management of a 
project assurance process and enter into Grant Funding Agreements with university, skills, local 
authorities and local businesses.  Subsidy Control considerations need further evaluation but 
are expected to be covered by a programme wide Subsidy Control Scheme. 

 
13.2 The proposed and outline CJC governance structure sets out at a high level the partnering 

bodies which will co-develop and manage delivery of the Investment Zone. As the model shows, 
the role of the CJC as accountable body and the functions and responsibilities it assumes for 
the IZ will involve a range of decisions both in terms of import but also risk management of 
decisions. Going forward and developing the model will require the CJC itself to agree and 
adopt amendments to the Constitution both in the Terms of Reference of its Economic Well-
being Sub Committee, appropriate delegated powers and delegation to its officers.  This work 
will need to be developed as the next stage of establishing the governance model. 

 
 

 
APPENDICES: 
 

Appendix 1 Tax Site Maps 

 
 

 
STATUTORY OFFICERS RESPONSE: 
 

i. Monitoring Officer: 
 
“This report which is based on extensive work at a local level starts bringing in some of 
the first key decisions for the CJC as part of its role as accountable body. It underlines 
the role which the CJC assumes, but also gives assurance as to the detailed work which 
has taken place to bring these proposals forward.  As the Legal Comments explain the 
proposed governance structure will need to be developed in detail to achieve the 
correct governance balance to support the successful delivery of the Investment Zone 

Page 22



within a robust and efficient assurance framework. The proposed framework has been 
developed in partnership and will be submitted into their respective democratic 
processes. This will enable sufficient information to be provided to support the 
Gateway 3 submission.” 
 

ii. Statutory Finance Officer: 
 
“I support the contents of this report.  Officers from the Finance Service will continue 
to provide support and challenge as required in the development of the project, 
including working with officers of the two councils as the plans develop.” 

Page 23



Scale 1:20,000 @ A4

OS Map SJ 3170

Produced: Oct 2024

Planning, Environment & Economy,
Flintshire County Council,
County Hall, Mold,
Flintshire, CH7 6NF.
Chief Officer: Mr Andrew Farrow

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material
with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the
Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office. © Crown Copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and
may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
Licence number 100023386.
Flintshire County Council, 2024.

N

Flintshire and Wrexham Investment Zone Tax Site Map

Deeside, Flintshire Tax Site

Site A Link 56  (9.50 Ha)
Site B      Smartstage (9.15 Ha) 
Site C1    Pochin / Goodman  (31.36 Ha)
Site D1    Marshalls  (5.14 Ha)
Site D2    Marshalls  (10.99 Ha)  
Site D3    Marshalls  (3.03 Ha)  

A

C

D1

D2

D3

B

Page 24



GP

Track

Pond

Pond

Caravan Site

Track

Track

Pond

GP

L
E

S
T

E
R

S
LA

N
E

KINNERTON LANE

Pond

C
A

S
T

LE
M

E
R

E
 C

L
O

S
E

Pond

Pond

S
U

M
M

E
R

F
IE

LD
 C

L
O

S
E

D rain

C HERRY DALE ROAD

W
O

O
D

F
IE

L
D

 C
L
O

S
E

L
L Y

S
 C

A
E

R

T
H

O
R

N
H

IL
L
 C

LO
S
E

A55

B
R

A
M

L
E

Y
 L

A
N

E

Issues

KINNER
TO

N LAN
E

The Rookery

Pond

Allotment Gardens

W
IN

D
S

O
R

 D
R

IV
E

A
R

N
O

LD
'S

 C
R

A 5104

D
RIVE

W
A

R
R

E
N

MOLD RO AD

CLO
SE

PENNY B
ANK

B
R

O
A

D
 O

A
K

 A
V

E
N

U
E

Drain

T
ra

c
k

Tra ck

L
E

S
T

E
R

S
 L

A
N

E

Warren Dingle

Pond

T
r a

c
k

Gravelhole Wood

A 5104

Issues

Sewage Bed

Pond

D
ra

in

Pond

Issues

T
ra

c
k

Lay-b
y

A 5
104

Fir Wood

T
ra

ck

Drain

Cattle Grid

Bilberry Wood

C
H

E
R

R
Y

 O
R

C
H

A
R

D
 R

O
A

D

A 55

Old Warren

Issues

Pond

58

3
7

21 3

173

4
6

177

1

1
0

9

34

Green Lane Farm

2
5

1

14

3

9

5

2

17

13

TCB

1

42
77

1
8

49

65

61

28

1
7

LB

Shelter

Brook View

Warren View

19

6
2

9

31

1

1
1

2

4

14

23

2
1

43

26

38

37

55

4
0

52

66

51

1
7

9

Warren

Acer Cottage

2
1

Hawthorne

Cottage

Villas

Ty-yn-y-cae

Tudor Oaks

2

67

1

6

5

2

8

1

9

14

10

10

20

1
4

2

16

31

27

Depot
Fern Bank

Laburnum

Cottage

Primrose Hill

F
i r

w
o

o
d

 C
o

t t
a
g

e

Honeysuckle Cottage

Warren Bank Farm

Taychreggan

The Croft

12

Nant Mawr Cottages

Warren Bank Cottage

Warren Mount
Half Acre

Witzend

D
e

L
o

gh
a

de
s

C
o t

ta
g

e

R
o
s
e

m
a

ry

Wheel

Eccleston

Tanfield

Cottage

Dale

Segar

House

HouseW
ood

si
de Spinning Pen-y-cae

H
il l
si

de

Cherry Orchard House

Dairy Cottage

Warrendale

Residential

Home

Cottage

Crab Mill Farm

Slurry

Slurry Bed

Mount Farm

The Mount

Bed

25

The Stables

Rose Mount

6

5

7 14

1
0

1
2

7

1
0

0

87

8

2
1

0
6

1

8

98

91

85

1

77

74 86

2

8

2

2
0

22

1
9

El Sub Sta

1
4

2
1

90

Tank

25

78

533l

37

49

46

56

64

52

38

Broadoak

Farm

26

30

24

19

1
6

19

5

1
5

1
7

1
1

24A

Warren Bank

The

Coach House

Lodge

Kinnerton

The Old Farmhouse

4
5

3

2
36

5

1

4

1
0

Hall

1

Attlas
Warren Hall

Warren

Boat House

2

Cottages

1
1

Broughton

Cottage

27

Woodvale

1
7

1
8

2
4

2
6

2
5

1
4

23

1
2

Court

Avalon

Warren Hall

Warren

Lodge

Hillside Cottage

Beeston View

Scale 1:7500 @ A4

OS Map SJ 3262

Produced: Oct 2024

Planning, Environment & Economy,
Flintshire County Council,
County Hall, Mold,
Flintshire, CH7 6NF.
Chief Officer: Mr Andrew Farrow

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material
with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the
Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office. © Crown Copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and
may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
Licence number 100023386.
Flintshire County Council, 2024.

N

Flintshire and Wrexham Investment Zone Tax Site Map

Site A Waren Hall  (20.25 Ha)

Warren Hall,Flintshire Tax Site 

A

Page 25



Scale 1:20,000 @ A4

OS Map SJ 3850

Produced: Oct 2024

Planning, Environment & Economy,
Flintshire County Council,
County Hall, Mold,
Flintshire, CH7 6NF.
Chief Officer: Mr Andrew Farrow

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material
with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the
Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office. © Crown Copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and
may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
Licence number 100023386.
Flintshire County Council, 2024.

N

Flintshire and Wrexham Investment Zone Tax Site Map

Wrexham Industrial Estate, 
Wrexham Tax Site

Site A Wrexham 152  (2.99 Ha)
Site B     Bridgeway  (3.37 Ha)
Site C     Utopia  (35.96 Ha)
Site D     Wrexham 1M  (25.29 Ha)

A

B

C

D

Page 26


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
	5 UPDATE: TRANSFER OF THE NORTH WALES ECONOMIC AMBITION BOARD FUNCTIONS TO THE CORPORATE JOINT COMMITTEE
	6 FLINTSHIRE AND WREXHAM INVESTMENT ZONE - PROGRESS UPDATE
	Appendix 1 - IZ Tax Site Maps


